
 

 
 
 
Having trouble reading this? Please call 0115 901 3844 if you need it in large print, audio 

or another format. 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

Agenda 

Civic Centre,  
Arnot Hill Park,  

Arnold, 
Nottinghamshire,  

NG5 6LU 
 

 

 

Environment and Licensing 

Committee 
 

 

 

Date: Tuesday 7 September 2021 

Time: 4.15 pm 

Place: Council Chamber 

 
For any further information please contact:  

Democratic Services 

committees@gedling.gov.uk 

0115 901 3844 

 

 

 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 
 

 

 

Environment and Licensing Committee 
 
Membership 
 
 
Chair Councillor Marje Paling 
  

Vice-Chair Councillor Nicki Brooks 

 
Councillor Pat Bosworth 
Councillor Roxanne Ellis 
Councillor Des Gibbons 
Councillor Julie Najuk 
Councillor Martin Smith 
Councillor Sam Smith 
Councillor Clive Towsey-Hinton 
Councillor John Truscott 
Councillor Paul Wilkinson 

 
 



 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

Page 

 

    

1   Apologies for Absence and Substitutions. 
 

 

 

2   Declaration of Interests. 
 

 

 

3   To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 10 
August 2021 
 

5 - 6 

 

4   Update on Pavement Licenses under the Business and Planning Act 
2020 
 

7 - 10 

 Report of the Head of Environment. 
 

 

 

5   Any other item which the Chair considers urgent. 
 

 

 

6   Exclusion of the Press and Public. 
 

 

 To move that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 
the public and press be excluded from the meeting during consideration of 
the ensuing report on the grounds that the report involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 7 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

 

 

7   Change of Circumstance of Joint Hackney Carriage / Private Hire 
Drivers Licence (CW) 
 

11 - 21 

 Report of Corporate Director of Environment, Communities & Leisure  
 

 

 

8   Application for a One Year Joint Hackney Carriage / Private Hire 
Drivers Licence (SH) 
 

23 - 26 

 Report of Corporate Director of Environment, Communities & Leisure 
 

 

 



 

 
 

9   Application for a One Year Joint Hackney Carriage / Private Hire 
Drivers Licence (SPS) 
 

27 - 29 

 Report of Corporate Director of Environment, Communities & Leisure 
 

 

 



MINUTES 
ENVIRONMENT AND LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 
Tuesday 10 August 2021 

 
Councillor Marje Paling (Chair) 

 
Present: Councillor Nicki Brooks 

Councillor Pat Bosworth 
Councillor Roxanne Ellis 
Councillor Des Gibbons 
Councillor Julie Najuk 

Councillor Martin Smith 
Councillor Clive Towsey-Hinton 
Councillor John Truscott 
Councillor Paul Wilkinson 

 

Absent: Councillor Sam Smith 

Officers in Attendance: C Allcock, A Dubberley and R Pentlow 

 
18    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS.  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Sam Smith. 
 

19    TO APPROVE, AS A CORRECT RECORD, THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETING HELD ON 13 JULY 2021  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the above meeting, having been circulated, be 
approved as a correct record. 
 

20    DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.  
 
None. 
 

21    MOBILE HOMES FIT AND PROPER POLICY  
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Food Health and Housing 
Manager seeking approval of the Fit and Proper Policy found at 
Appendix A to the report, which would enable the Policy to be used in 
accordance with new legal requirements. 
 
RESOLVED to: 
 

1) Note the content of the report and the changes in legislation 
relating to mobile home and caravan sites; 

 
2) Approve the adoption of a Fit and Proper Person Policy 2021; and 

 
3) Delegate authority to the Corporate Director for Environment 

Communities and Leisure to approve licences under the policy. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

 
22    ANY OTHER ITEM WHICH THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT.  

 
None. 
 

23    EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That, the Members being satisfied that the public interest in maintaining 
the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information 
that under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public and press be excluded from the meeting during the consideration 
of the ensuing reports on the grounds that the report involves the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 7 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

24    CHANGE OF CIRCUMSTANCES OF HACKNEY 
CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE DRIVER - ALB  
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Corporate Director of 
Environment, Communities and Leisure, which had been circulated in 
advance of the meeting, regarding a change of circumstances following 
information received about the holder of a Joint Hackney Carriage/ 
Private Hire Driver’s Licence.  
 
ALB attended the meeting and addressed the Committee. 
 
In making the decision the Committee applied the Council’s approved 
Policy and Guidelines and determined that exceptional circumstances 
existed to warrant departure from them.  
 
RESOLVED to: 
 
Issue a warning to ALB that such conduct fell short of the expected 
standard for Hackney Carriage Drivers and that further such incidents 
would result in another appearance before the Committee. 
 
 
 

The meeting finished at 4.55 pm 
 
 

 
 

Signed by Chair:    
Date:   

  

Page 6



 
 

Report to the Environment and Licensing Committee 
 
Subject: Update on Pavement Licenses under the Business and Planning Act 

2020 

Date: 7 September 2021 

Author: Head of Environment 

 

Purpose 

The purpose of this report is to: 

1. To update Members on the extension of the pavement licensing regime 
under the Business and Planning Act 2020.  

 

Recommendation(s) 

THAT members: 

1) Notes the contents of this report and the statutory obligations of 
Local Authorities under the Business and Planning Act 2020. 

2) Agree to introduce an application fee of £100 for pavement café 
licence applications with immediate effect. 

 

1 Background 

1.1 The Business and Planning Act 2020 came in to effect on 22 July 2020. 
The Act allows operators of businesses selling food and drink to apply to 
their local authority for a pavement licence, which gives authorisation to 
put certain removable furniture such as tables and chairs on the highway 
adjacent to their premises to sell food and drink from and/or for their 
customers to use.  
 

1.2 The pavement licensing regime is operated by the appropriate local 
authority, which is the district council in whose area relevant premises are 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



situated.  Applications for a pavement licence are to be made electronically 
directly to the Council.  
 
 

1.3 A pavement licence may be granted subject to conditions that the local 
authority considers reasonable, together with any mandatory conditions 
contained within the Act, a standard set of local conditions are published 
on the Council’s website. The mandatory conditions include a condition 
that any street furniture must not obstruct the highway and that there must 
be a smoke free area as part of the outdoor area. 
 

1.4 The grant of a pavement licence permits the placing of furniture on the 
highway only. Other regulatory frameworks still apply such as the need for 
alcohol licenses and the need to comply with registration requirements for 
food businesses. The grant of a pavement licence amounts to deemed 
planning permission to use the land for anything done pursuant to the 
licence while the licence is valid. 
 

1.5 The pavement licensing regime was due to expire on 30 September 2021 
however on 8th March 2021 Communities Secretary Rt Hon Robert Jenrick 
MP announced that the Government intend to extend pavement licences 
for a further 12 months to help the hospitality industry recover once 
lockdown restrictions are lifted. The Business and Planning Act 2020 
(Pavement Licences) (Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2021 came 
into force on 20 July 2021. These Regulations amend the Business and 
Planning Act to extend the expiry date of the pavement licence regime to 
30 September 2022.   
 

1.6 As part of the Governments ‘Road Map out of Lockdown’ hospitality 
venues have been able to serve people outdoors from 12 April 2021. It is 
envisaged that extending the pavement license regime will make it easier 
and cheaper for pubs, restaurants and cafes to serve people outside. 
 

1.7 

 

 

 
1.8 

In order to assist with the reopening of the hospitality sector the Council 
made the decision in 2020 not to charge a fee for applications for 
pavement licences. Since the implementation of pavement licences the 
Council have had five applications, four of which were granted and one 
refused.  
 
Following the Government’s decision to extend the pavement licence 
regime until September 2022 all existing licence holders will be required to 
apply for a further licence if they want to operate a pavement café licence 
until this time.  In addition, it is anticipated that other premises may want to 
apply for a pavement café licences under the Act.  It can take a 
considerable amount of officer time to assess each application and can 
sometimes involve site visits and liaison with other partners (eg the 

Page 8



Highway Authority and the Police).  The Act provides that a Council can 
charge a fee of up to £100 to process these applications.   
 

2 Proposal 

2.1 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 

It is proposed that Members note the contents of the report and the 
extension to the pavement licensing regime. 
 
It is proposed that Members introduce an application fee of £100 for 
pavement café licence applications with immediate effect. 

 Alternative Options 

3.1 None 

4 Financial Implications 

4.1 Due to the Government’s decision to extend the pavement café licence 
regime until September 2022 it is expected that more applications may be 
submitted.  Due to the amount of officer time involved in processing each 
application it is therefore proposed to charge an application fee of £100. 

5 Legal Implications 

5.1 Current license issued by the Council under the pavement licensing 
regime included an expiry date of 30 September 2021. There are no 
provisions within the Business and Planning Act 2020 to allow the Council 
to vary or extend existing licences. As such all existing licence holders will 
be required to reapply for a licence if they wish to continue to use the 
pavement areas up to 30 September 2022.  

6 Equalities Implications 

6.1 As part of the pavement licence regime local authorities are required to 
consider the needs of those within the protected characteristic of disability, 
and the recommended distances required for access by disabled people 
as set out in guidance issued by the Secretary of State when determining 
whether furniture put on the highway constitutes an obstruction.  Current 
guidance found in section 3.1 of Inclusive Mobility sets out a range of 
recommended widths which would be required, depending on the needs of 
particular pavement users, but makes it clear that in most circumstances 
1500mm clear space should be regarded as the minimum acceptable 
distance between the obstacle and the edge of the footway. The licence 
conditions impose a requirement on the licence holder to take this into 
consideration.  

Page 9



7 Carbon Reduction/Environmental Sustainability Implications 

7.1 There are no carbon reduction/sustainability implications arising from this 
report. 

8 Appendices 

8.1 None 

9 Background Papers 

9.1 None 

 

Statutory Officer approval 
 
Approved by:  
Date:  
On behalf of the Chief Financial Officer 
 
Approved by:  
Date:  
On behalf of the Monitoring Officer 
 

 
 
 

Page 10



Document is Restricted

Page 11

Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 23

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 27

Agenda Item 9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 10 August 2021
	4 Update on Pavement Licenses under the Business and Planning Act 2020
	7 Change of Circumstance of Joint Hackney Carriage / Private Hire Drivers Licence (CW)
	Appendix A Email received from Mr Wilkins on 29 July 2021.doc
	Appendix B Restraining order and Notice of Fine.pdf
	Appendix C Email received from Mr Wilkins on 6 August 2021.doc

	8 Application for a One Year Joint Hackney Carriage / Private Hire Drivers Licence (SH)
	9 Application for a One Year Joint Hackney Carriage / Private Hire Drivers Licence (SPS)

